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LICENSING  
SUB-COMMITTEE
4 January 2013 

REPORT
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

 Review of the Premises Licence for 
Gidea Park Groceries, 628 Upper 
Brentwood Road, RM2 6HS 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Paul Campbell – Licensing Officer 
01708 432777 
licensing@havering.gov.uk  

 
This application for a review of the premises licence is made by Keith Bush 
Specialist Trading Standards Officer under section 51 of the Licensing Act 
2003.  The application was received by Havering’s Licensing Authority on 
15th November 2012. 
 
Geographical description of the area and description of the building 
The premises are a single unit terrace convenience store situated in a row of four 
shops all with single story flats above. 
 
The premises are on the north side of Upper Brentwood Road at the junction with 
Farnes Drive about 30 metres west of Main Road.  The surrounding area to the 
premises are mainly residential properties. 
 
A map of the area is attached to assist the committee. 
 
The application to review the premises licence is made by Trading Standards 
following an under age sale of alcohol made during a test purchase operation.  
Trading Standards also found that there was a lack of systems in place at the 
premises to prevent underage sales. 
 
The shop holds a Premises Licence to supply alcohol for off supply only (a copy of 
the licence is attached to my report) this licence was obtained in 2005 by being 
grandfathered from the Licensing Act 1964.   
There have been no variation applications made to this licence, including 
Temporary Event Notices for the premises.   
 
Mr Mehmet Solak is the Premises Licence holder and is also the Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS) at the premises.   
Mr Solak’s Personal Licence was also grandfathered forward in 2005 from the old 
act.   
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In 2005 at the time of transition from the 1964 Act to the Licensing Act 2003 
persons who held a Justices Licence for selling alcohol were permitted to apply for 
and be issued a Personal Licence under the new act without the person holding a 
recognised qualification. 
Any person who applies for a Personal Licence today has to hold the correct 
qualification before it is issued. 
I have no knowledge if Mr Solak has undertaken any formal training to obtain a 
qualification relating to the supply of alcohol or duties of a DPS. 
 
Comments and observations on the application 
The applicant acted in accordance with regulations and served a copy of the notice 
on the licence holder.  I attended the premises on 16th November and spoke to Mr 
Solak he allowed me to place the notice advertising the review on his shop 
window.  The notice was also placed on the London Borough of Havering website 
and public notice board situated near the Town Hall. 
  
Summary 
There were no representations against this application from interested parties. 
 
There was one representation against this application from responsible authorities. 
 
Details of representations 
Valid representations may only address the following licensing objectives: 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
The prevention of public nuisance 
The protection of children from harm 
Public safety 
 
Responsible Authorities’ representations 
The Metropolitan Police support the application for review and outline the minimum 
conditions they think would help prevent any future underage sales, if the premises 
are to continue to supply alcohol. 
 
There were no representations from the following responsible authorities: 
Public Health 
The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
The Health & Safety Enforcing Authority 
The Trading Standards Service 
Planning Control & Enforcement 
Children & Families Service 
The Licensing Authority 
Health Service 
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 PC 118 KD  David Fern  

Licensing Authority 
London borough of Havering 
Mercury House, Mercury Gardens 
Romford 
RM1 3SL 

Romford Police Station 
19 Main Road 
Romford, 
Essex 
RM1 3BJ 
 
Telephone: 01708 432781 
Email:  
David-
anthony.fern@met.police.uk 

 Date: 19th November 2012 

Dear Sir/madam, 
 
Police wish to make representation in support of the review of the premises licence Gidea 
Park Groceries, 628 Upper Brentwood Road, Gidea Park RM2 
 
The applicant clearly has not demonstrated steps in order to protect children from harm 
in his polices or taken a reasonable response in the responsible sale of alcohol. Children 
who obtain alcohol often go on to commit crime and or create disorder within our streets. 
 
The borough of Havering was rated third out of thirty-three boroughs of London for 
alcohol fuelled violence, it is vital that retailers play a responsible part in selling alcohol 
and protecting children from harm. 
 
Police feel that the conditions recommended by Keith Bush are appropriate and the police 
would further recommend the following conditions to be attached to the licence. 
 
The CCTV requirement, this will assist in preventing crime and disorder and also assist in 
the investigation of any similar offences being reported to the police in the future. Proxy 
sale notices and clear window polices are essential and ensures adults are not buying 
alcohol for children, who often ask others outside, once they have been denied 
themselves. Single bottles and small bottles are often all children can afford and by 
eliminated the sale/risk this can further assist in preventing children from harm, along 
with the knock on effect of crime and or disorder. 
 
The operator of this venue appears to have failed in protecting children from harm and 
police feel these conditions are appropriate in order to promote the licensing act. 
 

 
CD16 A properly specified and fully operational CCTV system shall be installed or the 
existing system maintained to a satisfactory standard. The system will incorporate a 
camera covering each of the entrance doors and be capable of providing an image 
which is regarded as ‘identification standard’ of all persons entering and/or leaving 
the premises. All other areas of risk identified in the Operational Requirement shall 
have coverage appropriate to the risk. 
 



CD18 To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the 
premises on the CCTV system, persons entering the premises should be asked to 
remove headwear, unless worn as part of religious observance. 
 
CD19 The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and all recordings shall 
be securely stored for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in place 
to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail maintained. 
The system will comply with other essential legislation, and all signs as required will 
be clearly displayed. The system will be maintained and fully operational throughout 
the hours that the premises are open for any licensable activity. 
 
CD21 A staff member from the premises who can operate the CCTV system shall be 
on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public. This staff 
member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested. 
 
CDGPG13 Prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at the premises about the 
supply of alcohol to minors and the relevant offences involved. 
 

 The front window of the store must be kept clear from any promotional posters 
or anything similar, staff are require to monitor outside the store to prevent 
any proximity sales. Warnings should be given to adults about the offence of 
buying alcohol for those under 18 if suspected. 

 
 A personal licence holder will be on duty at times during licensable activity. 

 
 The premises shall not stock any cans/bottles of lager, cider, beer or sprint 

based mixers unless they are in packs of four or more. 
 

 No bottles of wine or spirits less then 70cl shall be sold from the premises. 
 
 

If I can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to contact me in 
the licensing office.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
PC David Fern 
Metropolitan Police - Havering 
Licensing Officer 
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